
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

APRIL 24, 2012 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Celske called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Dal Compo polled the members present:  Zoning Board members, Celske, Anderson, Dufern, 

Karls, Murren and Rosch.  Also present were Mr. Vernon of BCA Technical Services as staff 

to the Zoning Board, and John Donahue, Village Attorney. Schneider was absent. 

 

Village President Bob Nunamaker and Trustees Joanna Colletti and Mike Ireland were also in 

attendance.  Business owners Bob Blasko of Tinman’s Pub and Mike Cody of Cody 

Chiropractic were in attendance as well.   

 

APPROVAL OF APRIL 19, 2011 MINUTES 

A motion was made by Karls and seconded by Murren to approve the minutes from the  

April 19, 2011 meeting as presented.  A voice vote followed with all in favor.  The motion 

carried. 

 

ZONING BOARD CASE 2012-01 VARIANCE/SPECIAL USE: TINMAN’S PUB 

OUTDOOR SEATING --Chairman Celske recognized Mr. Bob Blasko as representative of 

Tinman’s Pub.  Chairman Celske then asked Mr. Vernon to summarize the case.  Mr. Vernon 

explained that the owner desires a permanent variance to allow outdoor seating that would 

include beverages not served in glass.  The business has been using a temporary outdoor 

seating arrangement for the past year without incident.   

 

Chairman Celske stated that he had spoken with Chief Lukasik, who provided the written 

addendum to the liquor license.  The temporary addendum was in effect from June 1, 2011 

until June 1, 2012.   

 

The temporary addendum has the following stipulations: 

 

“Outdoor seating can be used for consuming beverages, but cannot be used for serving any 

food or restaurant food service.   

 

1) Such seating area will exist within 50 feet of the main entrance of the Pub. 

2) The seating area will be defined by a fence structure have at least three sides. 

3) All alcoholic beverages can only be consumed within the defined outdoor seating area. 

4) No alcoholic beverages can be consumed within the outdoor seating area before 6 p.m. 

 

 



2 

 

5) Beverages being consumed within the outdoor seating area will only be available in 

 plastic cups. 

6) Patrons using the outdoor seating area to consume alcohol must be identifiable by 

 means of a wrist band or hand stamp. 

7) Tin Man’s Pub will be responsible for providing a closed top trash container and 

 maintaining the area free of butts and trash”.       

 

Mr. Blasko reiterated that there had been no incidents or complaints that he was aware of.  

Because the license was probationary, the beverage service had only begun at 6 p.m.  His 

desire is to have full use of the outdoor seating area for food and beverages during all hours of 

operation.  His business hours Monday through Saturday are 11:00 a.m. until 2:00 a.m.  

Sundays, the hours are 8:00 a.m. until 2 p.m.  He has told Ted Wagner that anyone was 

allowed to use the tables.  He noted that Bamboo Garden King and other local restaurants 

already had patrons consuming food at the outdoor tables; but he now wants to be able to use it 

to serve food from his own restaurant as well.     

 

Mr. Blasko further explained that he hopes that the 2 p.m. Sunday close time would not be set 

in stone.  He also desires for smoking to be permitted in the outdoor seating area, since the no 

smoking indoors in Illinois law has caused problems for businesses like his.   

 

Village President Nunamaker said that the trial period had worked out well, but the question is 

will the arrangement with the expanded hours be a problem to other adjacent businesses.   

 

Chairman Celske recognized Mr. Mike Cody.  Mr. Cody explained that he has been a good 

neighbor to his fellow business owners.  However, he finds cigarette butts all over the place.  

Also, there is not to be smoking within 15 feet of the building, and he doesn’t feel this 

boundary is always kept by patrons of Tinman’s.  He stops seeing patients at 6 p.m. during his 

clinic hours, but now with the expanded Tinman’s hours he is concerned.  He is most worried 

about the smoking, since his patients come to him seeking good health care.     

 

Trustee Ireland explained that he himself had been part of the process.  He had spoken with 

Ted Wagner, and told him that Tinman’s was seeking permission for the outdoor seating for all 

of their business hours.  Mr. Wagner had said it was fine with him.   

 

Mr. Blasko noted that Tinman’s had been in the current location for thirteen years, and the 

police had only been called there once.  He expressed that he and his employees do their best to 

get everything cleaned up.  He also stated that the smoking area is more than 15 feet from the 

front door.   

 

Chairman Celske asked the Board members how they felt about the outdoor seating with food 

and alcohol as a concept.  Members all said they were good with it.  Chairman Celske noted 

that the outdoor seating adds ambience.  Member Murren asked what the legal hours are for 

alcohol sales on Sunday.  Mr. Blasko said 6:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m.   

 

Member Dufern asked what Cody Chiropractic’s clinic hours are.  Mr. Cody said 7:00 a.m. 

until 6:00 p.m. Mondays, Wednesdays and Thursdays and 8:00 a.m. until 11:00 a.m. on 

Saturdays.    

 

Chairman Celske said that he didn’t have a problem with the food or alcohol service, but 

thought that 2:00 a.m. might be somewhat late to allow the outdoor drinking.  He asked if any 



3 

 

of the other members concurred; they did not.  Member Dufern asked when last call was 

usually. Mr. Blasko said around 1:15 or 1:30 a.m.  He also noted that the kitchen closes at 

10:00 p.m. but he continues to serve sandwiches after that so that people aren’t drinking on an 

empty stomach.    

 

Mr. Blasko said that he would eventually like to do different fencing.  Member Rosch noted 

that it is probably difficult due to the island.   Member Anderson noted that the white plastic 

chain which is currently in use is not aesthetically pleasing and should be changed if possible.   

 

Chairman Celske asked if there is any intention of piping music to the outdoor area; Mr. 

Blasko said no.  Member Murren said that Mr. Blasko and his employees will need to make a 

better effort to keep the area clean.  Member Dufern asked how many ashtrays and trash 

receptacles are available.  Mr. Blasko said three ashtrays and one trash can.  Member Dufern 

further asked who is policing the “no glass” policy.  Mr. Blasko said that either the bartender or 

he personally watch for it.   

 

Chairman Celske expressed concern over the smoking issue.  Member Murren noted that 

Public Health and Safety will address the specifics during their review.  Chairman Celske said 

he doesn’t like there to be smoking where people are eating.  Attorney Donahue stated that the 

15 foot distance from the building is the State Law.  The other members didn’t have a problem 

with smoking outside.   

 

Member Murren asked if the restaurant is ever at capacity so that the outdoor seating is 

required for overflow.  Mr. Blasko said no.  Member Karls noted that patrons from the adjacent 

eating establishments may have a problem with the smoking, but it will be their choice whether 

to sit there or not.   

 

A MOTION was made by Rosch and seconded by Murren to recommend approval of the 

application to grant the special use with conditions as enumerated in the temporary 

allowance addendum as to numbers 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, and 7.  Food and alcohol will be 

permitted during all regular business hours.  A roll call vote was taken.  Celske--yes, 

Anderson—yes, Dufern--yes, Karls—yes, Murren--yes.  Rosch—yes. Motion Carried.  

 

Member Dufern asked if additional insurance is needed for the outdoor seating.  Mr. Blasko 

said no, but his insurance company had been notified of the change.   

 

Chairman Celske reiterated that the Zoning Board only makes recommendations to the Village 

Board, who will have the final say.  The application next goes to the Public Health and Safety 

Commission, who meet on the first Tuesday of the month.     

 

Zoning Board Case 2012-01 was concluded at 7:37 p.m.   

 

OTHER BUSINESS—Chairman Celske told the members that Ringer’s Landscape had sent a 

card expressing appreciation to the ZBA for their assistance last year.  The card was passed 

around to the members.   

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Murren and seconded by Rosch to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried 

unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 



4 

 

 

      

Daniel A. Celske, Chairman 

 

      

Alison Dal Compo, Secretary 

 

      

Date approved 


